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ANSWER #2:  Section M-2, basis for selection of offers for comparison and for determining the award is revised to include the following new sentence “Award will be made on an “all or none” basis and failure to submit offers on all line items listed shall be cause for rejection of the offer.  Yes, the list of companies that registered for the Pre-Proposal Conference will be used as the bidders mailing list for this procurement.
QUESTION #3 :  I’m concerned that a contractor could have a competitive advantage in the IT infrastructure competition because of their affiliation with the End User Support Center.  They have the opportunity to collect data and information on our systems and our problems through the EUSC problem tickets and the knowledge database.  Other competitors would not have access to this information.  Is there a process in place to bar vendors from bidding for the IT Infrastructure work if they have ongoing contracts that may provide them an unfair advantage?
ANSWER #3:  Yes, there is a process in place, under the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) to address potential contractors’ organizational conflicts of interest in order to avoid giving any party an unfair competitive advantage in seeking government contracts.  FAR 9.505 General Rules state that an unfair competitive advantage occurs (1) When a contractor gains access to proprietary information from others to perform a government contract and can use the leverage of the contract to obtain it; or (2) the contractor possesses source selection information that is relevant to all competitors.  Any contractor that has contracted with the Government has a competitive advantage.  The key point is whether or not the advantage is construed as being an “unfair competitive” advantage.  The EUSC contract alone, while it may give a contractor an advantage over contractors that do not have any experience, it does not appear to provide an unfair competitive advantage under the FAR 9.5 rules.
QUESTION #4:  Reference: page 161 - Section L, Item L.5 52-215-20 Requirements for Cost or Pricing Data or Information Other than Cost or Pricing Data – Alternate II (Reference FAR 15.408(1))

Sub-item L.5 52.215-20 (a) states “Submission of cost or pricing data is not required”, however actual FAR clause states “Alternate II (Oct 1997). As prescribed in 14.408(1), add the following paragraph (c) to the basic provision:

(c) When the proposal is submitted, also submit one copy each to: (1) the Administrative Contracting Officer, and (2) the Contract Auditor.”

Which clause does the Forest Service wish to cite?
ANSWER #4: FAR 52.215-20, ALT IV, which states that the offeror is not required to submit cost or pricing data, but instead must submit information in accordance with instructions in L.10.2.3 of the RFP.
QUESTION #5: There is no question #5.
QUESTION #6 :  As stated, sub-item (a) conflicts with sub-item (b) “Provide information described below in Section L.10.2.3” which does request detailed cost or pricing data.  Is the offeror required to provide cost or pricing data?
ANSWER #6:  Offerors are not required to submit certified cost or pricing data.  The Government intends to perform cost realism analysis in accordance with Section M, Factor 1, Cost/Price and they must get sufficient cost/price information from offerors in order to perform this analysis.
QUESTION #7:   Reference: Page 11, C-2.3: "Some of the functions described in this document are currently accomplished with a mix of Government and private sector personnel.  The workload associated with contracted professional services is included in this PWS... and is included in the workload to be assumed by the Service Provider."
What is meant here by the phrase "contracted professional services"?  Will the Service Provider be taking on the duties and responsibilities of both the Government personnel and the private sector personnel? 

ANSWER #7:
The Service Provider may choose to integrate the professional services provided by the Government-Furnished Contracts with its own services, or it may propose to terminate the Government-Furnished Contracts and provide the services currently provided under those contracts with its own resources, either internal or subcontracted.
QUESTION #8:  Will the Service Provider have an opportunity to elect to hire from within the pool of Government personnel?  The pool of private sector personnel?
ANSWER #8:
As specified in FAR 7.305(c), the Service Provider is required to provide the incumbent government workforce with the Right of First Refusal of Employment for vacancies in its workforce.

QUESTION 9#:  Reference: page 25, C-4.4.1 in re Earned Value Management System use.  
Does the Forest Service or the Agriculture Department have such a system already in use for other project management efforts?  If so, is that system a de facto standard, which bidders should plan on using for this purpose?  (Obvious follow-on is, what system is it?)

ANSWER #9:  While the Service Provider may sue any appropriate project management tool, the SP must be able to report required information to USDA in the format specified by USDA.  USDA OCIO is currently testing the use of Metier’s WorkLenz as a Portfolio/Project Management tool with the capability to perform Earned Value Management.  Foe the purposes of submitting a proposal on this RFP, WorkLenz should be considered the de facto standard for USDA reporting.
QUESTION #10: Reference: page 115, C-5.10.1: "The Service Provider shall provide personnel to fill these positions... After contract award, the Service Provider shall provide a list of staff with Red Cards and their availability to the local dispatching center."  Must bidders have available Red Card-qualified personnel in all regions at contract award or may we qualify individuals during the Phase-In Period?
ANSWER #10: Service Provider personnel performing tasks requiring Red Card certification must have their Red Card prior to commencement of an assignment requiring the certification.  The Service Provider must be prepared to provide personnel for such assignments as soon as responsibility for performance of the requirements of this solicitation passes from the incumbent organization to the new Service Provider.

QUESTION #11:  Company X has office near a couple of the sites but not at most of the sties where you will be requiring services.  If you require one contractor to manage all the sites there will be limited competition.  Can a contractor bid out a portion of the work geographically?  If not, can you provide a list of bidders so that we can try to subcontract our services to a prime?
ANSWER #11:  It is up the contractor to decide how they want to proposed their solution and any proposed teaming arrangement that meets the requirements as stated in accordance with the Performance Work Statement (PWS) as stated in Section C of the RFP.  The sign-in sheet for the Pre-Proposal Conference may be used as a potential bidders mailing list for contractors seeking teaming and subcontracting opportunities.
QUESTION #12:  In TE-01 Locations requiring IT Support - Seemingly omitted (review limited to one Forest, the Wallowa-Whitman National Forest) were the sites:

Riggins, ID, HCNRA Office

Clarkston, WA, HCNRA Office

Soils Contractor Office, LaGrande, OR

NOIFC Office, LaGrande, OR

Enterprise Compound, Enterprise, OR

Grand Ronde Model Watershed Office, Island City, OR

The first four of these sites show as having FS imaged PCs at the site in TE-10, a simple cross check would have identified those four.  

Subquestions:  

12a.  Were these sites omitted in error, or are they included in some other tab of TE-01, or were they omitted for a reason?  If so what reason?
ANSWER 12a:  The Technical Exhibits show all sites reported to the Performance Work Statement (PWS) Team in response to data calls issued in support of the PWS.

12b.  How many other sites were omitted in R6 and the Forest Service as a whole?

ANSWER 12b:  In preparing the Technical Exhibits, no sites were knowingly omitted by the PWS Team.

12c.  Will there be an add-on cost for on-site support at these and other omitted sites if the errors are not corrected?
ANSWER 12c:  If an uncorrected discrepancy between the government’s actual requirements and those specified in the solicitation is discovered post-award, the contracting officer will examine the particular circumstances in order to determine how or whether the error will be corrected, IAW Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR).

QUESTION #13:  In TE-04 Government Furnished Facilities there seems to be a considerable difference in the way these were reported. - In Region 1 there appears to be a nearly 1:1 ratio of Government Furnished Facilities: Locations requiring IT Support, in Region 6 the ratio is more like 1:5, and most concerning to me is that within Region 6 some areas approach a 1:1 ratio (SW OR), while NE Oregon has no identified Government Furnished Facilities. Again my review was very limited – focusing on how the Wallowa-Whitman NF compared with other areas.
Subquestions:

13a. Were the same standards/definitions used when identifying government furnished facilities?  If so what were they?
ANSWER 13a:  All R/S/A/I Data Call Coordinators were provided the identical spreadsheet and instructions for providing input to the data calls.  Spreadsheet columns and rows were annotated as appropriate to explain what was required; these annotations are present in the Technical Exhibit spreadsheets.  Data Call Coordinators participated in weekly conference calls with the PWS Team to resolve questions from the field.

13b.  Should there be more "Government Furnished Sites" identified within NE Oregon?
ANSWER 13b:  The Government Furnished Sites identified within NE Oregon are the ones that were identified by Government personnel and are the best estimate as this time.

13c.  Why is there such a discrepancy in the number of "Government Furnished Facilities" between areas in R6 and between regions?

ANSWER 13c:  The deadlines imposed on the Performance Work Statement Team did not allow it sufficient time to discover, investigate, and resolve all data discrepancies.

QUESTION #14:  If the above concerns are errors or omissions - does the magnitude of error found in a very limited review (of bid items that should be easy to define and inventory) indicate the need for a more thorough and systematic review of all the documents? 

ANSWER #14:  There is not enough information provided with your question to determine the magnitude of any error that may be present, but the PWS Team will investigate your concern.  As a general matter, the Forest Service environment is not static, and will continue to evolve up to and beyond the contract award date.  Part of the process of transitioning to a new Service Provider will involve reconciling the description of the agency’s environment as it existed when the PWS was being written and as it will exist at the time of contract award.  Such reconciliation will be done mutually between the new Service Provider and the Forest Service’s contracting officer IAW FAR provisions.
QUESTION #15:  Will the Forest Service be submitting a proposal in response to the RFP?  If the Forest Service is submitting a proposal for all or a portion of the RFP, will the FS also seek partners?
ANSWER #15:  Yes, it is anticipated that the Forest Service MEO will submit a proposal in response to the RFP.  It is up to the MEO to ascertain whether and with whom they will seek teaming/subcontracting arrangements.
QUESTION #16:  In the CBD announcements for this solicitation, the Government indicated approximately 1200 FTEs were under study.  In our analysis of the final PWS Section C-5, much of the contractor workload has been included in the total workload.    Does the 1200 FTE number include the FS personnel and contractor work that is being competed in the solicitation? 

ANSWER #16:  The 1,200 FTE number is an estimate, and includes only workload attributed to Forest Service personnel.  

QUESTION #17:  Please update the FTE totals and clarify.
ANSWER #17:  Clarification is not necessary. Contractor workload is separately identified in Section C-5.  
QUESTION #18:  To provide a proper proposal including potential contract costs, it is necessary to evaluate current contract costs, location, price, termination fees and other supporting documentation within existing contracts.  Please provide a list of current contracts including costs, location, price, terminations fee, etc currently held by the Forest Service being provided and included as part of the PWS workload?  

ANSWER #18:  All current contracts, as provided by Forest Service units, are listed in TE-09, along with locations and Points of Contact.  Information regarding price/costs may be proprietary; termination fees may not be able to be determined except by the responsible Contracting Officer. It is up to the offeror to get the requested information from the applicable point of contact in accordance with TE-09. In any event, since the contracts are being provided to both the Agency Tender and commercial offerors on an equal basis their costs are a wash for purposes of proposal preparation.

QUESTION #19:  TE-10d (TE-24a) identifies 1,994 AIX servers, and TE-24b identifies 198 additional servers, for a total of 2,192 servers.  This is a considerably larger number than the 1,200 mentioned in section C-1.3.  In addition, the direction in C-4.1 instructs bidders to bid only on the contents of C, not on the technical exhibits.  Which number of servers does the Government intend bidders to support?

a)
1,200 as listed in Section C?

b)
1,994 as identified in TE-10d?

c)
2,192 including those in TE-10d and TE-24b?

ANSWER #19:
2,192.  The direction in C-4.1.1, last bullet, is being clarified as follows:

Information and data presented in Technical Exhibits are intended to describe the “as-is” environment, including quantitative requirements as they existed in the summer of 2003, and not to define functions to be performed in addition to or instead of those described in this Section C.
QUESTION #20:  Due to labor constraints, union and agency staffing rules, the MEO is prohibited from submitting resumes of qualified individuals and skills matrix as part of the key personnel section of Volume II Tab 3 and Section C-4.4.5.3.  Please change the instructions to bidders to allow the Agency tender to submit the PM organization information without including key personnel and the skills matrix.

ANSWER #20:
Instructions to bidders will be modified to instruct the Agency Tender to include position descriptions for key personnel.
QUESTION #21:  In Section C-4.4.5.5, offerors are instructed to provide a Phase-Out Plan.  Normally in an A-76 solicitation, the MEO is not required to provide a Phase-Out plan.  Please clarify.  

ANSWER #21:
Unless or until legislation or other regulatory action exempts a successful Agency Tender from having to re-compete the studied work at the end of contract performance, the Agency Tender will be required to provide a Phase-Out Plan.  Under the new A-76 rules in effect as of May 29, 2003, the Agency Tender is, where possible, to be subject to the same requirements as commercial bidders, unless specific differences are mandated in the Circular or the FAR.
QUESTION #22:  In Section C-5.1.2.1, a maintenance and warranty database is referenced, but not specified elsewhere in the RFP or its Technical Exhibits.  

Is this a Government-provided database?  

Where in the solicitation is this database described?
ANSWER #22:  The database referenced in Section 5-5.1.2.1 is provided by the government, and currently is the Agency-developed Hardware Management System (HMS).  The database is not described in the solicitation, but it is a collection of relational database tables, reports, and user-interface elements.
QUESTION #23:  C-5.1.9.2 requires the Service Provider to support 1,602 special projects per year of varying and unspecified length and requiring varying resources.  As written, the only information provided is the number of incidents, but no information is provided as to the duration and resources the Government expects.  Considering that the Forest Service has experienced special projects that vary from a few hours to many weeks in duration, the lack of definition of resources required for this task makes it impossible to bid on without large differences in expectations on the part of the bidders and the Government.  Please provide a defined workload, including resources and duration.
ANSWER #23:
This requirement is described with as much detail as possible.  As noted by you and in the referenced section, duration and resource requirements are variable.  TE-12 provides a representative list of such projects accomplished in prior years.  The Forest Service does not account separately for such Special Projects, and thus the government does not have information available to it regarding the expenditure of time and personnel resources on such projects in the past.
QUESTION #24:   The requirement in C-5.1.15 states that the Service Provider must “maintain IT at within training facilities”, not just those that the Service Provider uses.  There are hundreds of sites across the Forest Service that meets these criteria and the PWS implies support of all training facilities across the country.  Please provide a listing the locations of all training facilities and the IT equipment at those facilities that must be maintained by the Service Provider.

ANSWER #24:  The Service Provider is responsible for maintaining all IT (i.e., all hardware, software, and telecomm) at all Forest Service facilities.  This requirement is inclusive of any IT within training facilities located in Forest Service facilities.  TE-01 lists all Forest Service facilities requiring support from the Service Provider.  Other TEs list the inventory requiring support, which is inclusive of that contained within Forest Service training facilities.

QUESTION #25:  Section C-5.1.15 requires the Service Provider to “Train personnel on NIFC cache radio systems.”  Currently, this training is done at NIFC, and we believe this functionality is not under the current IT Infrastructure Study.  Please clarify what training is needed for this output.
ANSWER #25:  The NIFC personnel responsible for training are no longer in an IT occupational series, and were not part of the study.  NIFC however does pay Forest Service technical experts to travel occasionally to locations where they instruct Federal and State interagency personnel in NIFC Cache Radio System and Incident Command System (ICS) operation.  These Forest Service technical experts also teach Comm-Tech and Comm-Unit-Leader courses, but again their travel is paid by NIFC.  Forests that pre-position NIFC Fire Cache Radio Systems also provide training on them for their local staff in addition to the yearly safety training on Forest radio systems.   Some Geographical Area Coordination Centers (GACCs) also provide NIFC Fire Cache Radio Systems training from time to time when there is enough local or Regional interest.
QUESTION #26:  Section C-5.1.15, Output 3 requires the Service Provider to prepare & deliver 37,251 training courses a year.  

Please provide clarification on the composition of the 37,251 courses, such as formal and informal, group and individual training.  

How many of these courses are required to be taught on-site at Forest Service field locations?
ANSWER #26:  Classroom (groups) training is provided at the Washington Office, Regional Offices, and Station Headquarters Offices.  Group size can vary from very small to large (group size can be expected not to exceed 30-35 for classroom training, and is usually smaller).  Individual(one-on-one) and informal training is provided at all Forest Service locations.  TE-14 provides the rest of the available information, including the types of training provided and the locations.  Although TE-14 contains anomalies deriving from the level of detail provided by the various units, those mostly relate to the reporting of individual one-on-one informal training sessions on usability issues.

QUESTION #27:  Section C-5.2.6.1 requires that “all desktops, laptops, and servers are registered in Tivoli.”  This appears to contradict current Government policy, which allows exceptions to this requirement.  In addition, some servers listed in the technical exhibits are not licensed for nor running the Tivoli software.  Did the Government intend for “all” devices to be registered into Tivoli or maintain current policy?
ANSWER #27:  The language in Section C-5.2.6.1 will be modified as follows:

Implementation includes, but is not limited to, installing, updating, and configuring hardware and software components, and ensuring all desktops, laptops and servers that have not been granted an exemption are registered in Tivoli.
QUESTION #28:  Section C.5.4 specifies “the service provider shall be responsible for any wiring work associated with moves, adds, changes or de-installations once a facility is occupied.”  Is it the intent of the Government to have the Service Provider provide the labor (using Government-furnished materials) for physically installing or moving existing wiring infrastructure in an occupied facility?
ANSWER #28:  Yes.
QUESTION #29:  Section C-5.5.1.1, outputs 1 and 2 indicate that this support is to be \"desk side\".  Is it the intent of the Government that this work be done physically at each site in the FS or is the verbiage “desk side” in error?
ANSWER #29:  The language in Section C-5.5.1.1 is derived from existing Service Level Agreements covering the work as it is now performed (see TE-25).  As noted elsewhere, the work described in Section C-5 represents the “as-is” environment that must be supported during the phase-in and initial implementation performance periods, but is not meant to constrain the Service Provider in developing its proposal for meeting the government’s requirements during the innovation phase.
QUESTION #30 :  Section L.10 restricts the responses to 50 pages, double-spaced, which considering the complexity and size of this solicitation, this is insufficient to describe our solutions with adequate substantiation.  Please update to reflect a 100-page limit, double-spaced.
ANSWER #30:   The language in Section L.10.2.5 will be modified to permit a 100 page, double-spaced, limit on responses, and to remove the QASP from the page limit.  

QUESTION #31:  Section L.10.2.3 requires offerors to follow the instructions in Attachment J for this costing proposal.  However, based on OMB Circular A-76, the Agency Tender is mandated to provide their costing models based on outputs from the COMPARE software.  Requiring the Agency Tender to complete both Attachment J and using COMPARE for the MEO forces the Agency Tender to develop 2 versions of the same cost proposal, requiring much unnecessary extra work and introduces the chance for inconsistencies and confusion in the evaluation process.  Please clarify Section L.10.2.3 to require the Agency Tender to submit the COMPARE outputs instead of Attachment J of the solicitation.
ANSWER #31:  In order for all proposals to be evaluated fairly, the costing proposal for each must be provided to the Contracting Officer in the same format, as specified in Section L.10.2.3 and Attachment J, regardless of the tools that must or will be used to construct their costing models.

QUESTION #32:  Section L.10.2.9 states the Government requires the following Management Plans and Procedures to be included: 

a)
Phase-In Plan

b)
Transition Plan

c)
Project Management Plan

d)
Subcontract Management Plan

e)
Phase-Out Plan

In addition, in section L.2.B Agency Tender, the government stipulates that the agency must submit a quality control plan (QCP) and a Phase-In Plan in addition to the requirements of the solicitation.  This requires some clarification:

Is the Phase-In Plan requested of the MEO in L.2.B to be submitted as the Phase–In Plan requested in section L.10.2.9?
ANSWER #32:
Yes.
QUESTION #33:  Because the Phase-In Plan was the only management plan specifically mentioned in L.2.B, it raises the possibility that the government did not intend the MEO to submit the other requested management plans under Tab 5 of Volume II.  Please clarify.
ANSWER #33:  The Agency Tender must include all Management Plans and Procedures specified in Section L.10.2.9.

QUESTION #34:   Section C-4.4.5.1 states that the Phase-In period shall be 90 calendar days between contract award and end of first performance period.  Section L.10.2.9, Phase-In Plan states that “The phase-in plan shall consider recruiting, hiring, training, security limitations and any other special considerations of the prospective providers to reflect a phase-in period of realistic length and requirements”.  Is this an indication that the “Phase-In period” may be longer than 90 calendar days?
ANSWER #34:
No.  The language in Section L.10.2.9 will be modified as follows:

The phase-in plan shall consider recruiting, hiring, training, security limitations and any other special considerations of the prospective providers to reflect a phase-in period of realistic length and requirements, not to exceed 90 days.
QUESTION #35:  There seems to be significant overlap between the QC/CSP and the QASP in Section L-10.2.10.  Can we submit one comprehensive plan?
ANSWER #35:
No.  The focus of the QC/CSP is on the Service Provider’s internal processes and procedures by which it will manage quality control and customer satisfaction issues.  The focus of the QASP is on the deliverables and metrics that the government will use to monitor and assess contract performance.   Your proposal must provide separate plans.

QUESTION #36:  What steps will the Government take to ensure commercial bids don't unfairly move profit and risk from the FFP part of this contract into the incentives (L.10.2.10), resulting in an artificially low bid in comparison to the Agency Tender?
ANSWER #36:   The Government is required to perform cost-realism analysis in accordance with both the revised A-76 circular and the terms of the solicitation.  Therefore, proposed prices will be evaluated to determined if the price/cost estimates are realistic for the work to be performed, reflect a clear understanding of the requirements, and are consistent with the unique methods of performance.  If an offeror’s price is evaluated as unrealistic, the Government will reflect these findings and risks in the cost realism analysis.  

QUESTION #37:  Sections L.11 and L.12 states the Government appears to be prohibiting contact between offerors and the contracting officer between December 6 and January 30.  L-12 instructs vendors to seek clarification prior to submitting an offer, but L-11 requires all formal communications be submitted no later than 21 days after release of the solicitation (Dec 5).  With this restriction, how does a bidder request clarification as instructed in L-12 after the Dec 5 cut off in L-11?
ANSWER #37:  Issues arising after the pre-proposal conference that require a response from the Contracting Officer should be brought to her attention in writing as soon as possible, but not later than December 16, 2003, using the contact information provided in Section L.11.  

QUESTION #38:  Section M.2 D states that the Agency Tender does not include certain information, especially past performance, how will a true comparison be done with consistent evaluation criteria?  As an example, if a 1 to 5 scale or some such scheme is used, will the Agency Tender be scored a 3 (neutral), resulting in a poor score in relation to competitors because the Agency Tender does not include such information?  If we achieve high scores in other areas, this would effectively lower our score.  Please modify Section M to evaluate the Agency Tender only on those items, which are required for the ATO submission.
ANSWER #38:  Attachment B, Section D.3.a(4) of OMB Circular A-76 directs the Contracting Officer not to require the Agency Tender to provide certain information, also listed in Section M.2.D.  IAW FAR 15.305(a)(2)(iv), if the Agency Tender does not include Past Performance information, it will be evaluated neither favorably nor unfavorably in that area, but will receive a neutral rating.  This does not preclude the Agency Tender from submitting information on either past performance or small business subcontracting.  If the Agency Tender does not include information in the other areas exempted under Circular A-76, the same approach will be taken:  The Agency Tender will be evaluated neither favorably nor unfavorably.

QUESTION #39:  Throughout Section C-5, the majority of the outputs just do not make sense.  For example: C.5.1.3 5 year replacement plans done annually says 900, a number that is larger than the total of FS offices including the Washington Office, regions, stations, forests and districts combined; C-5.6.1 requires 19,500 (or 50% of the FS PC inventory) to be reimaged per year; TE-09 lists cell phone contracts, but the PWS does not mention any requirement to support cell phones.  The cumulative effect of these workloads appears to require a level of work many times the 1200 FTEs that are supposed to be under study.  As a result, the specifications erroneously depict the work to be done and will not meet the requirements of the Forest Service.  Any winning bidder will immediately seek changes in the contract once the significant differences between the real workload and that described in the PWS becomes known, and will count on such errors on the part of the Government to increase their profit on this contract.  The result will be much higher costs to the Government than anticipated.  Please provide additional guidance and clarification.
ANSWER #39:  WRT replacement plans:  These plans are developed separately for Working Capital-funded equipment, as well as for radio equipment, and the numbers shown represent the information that was reported to the PWS Team.  WRT re-imaging numbers:  These numbers represent the information the PWS Team collected from the field.  WRT cell phones:  Cell phone end-user support is not part of this solicitation.  Arranging for cell phone service has been performed in a few regions by IT staff.  Cell phone contracts listed in TE-09 may have been included for that reason, or may reflect cell phone contracts currently in place to support the region’s IT staff.  Recently the USDA CFO directed that only agency DARs may establish cell phone accounts.  The DAR function, by regulation, must be performed by a government employee.  Consequently, DAR workload is not part of this competition.  Please address specific requests for clarification to the Contracting Officer using the contact information provided in Section L.11.
QUESTION #40:  How many FTEs and contractors are currently in each of the locations listed in TE-01, and what are their job functions?  This information is required to properly establish the staffing requirements for IT support in each location.
Answer #40:
Bids should be based on the workload described in the solicitation, and not on current staffing levels.
QUESTION #41:  What are the grade, step, and job description of each position covered by this study?  This information is required to comply with the “right of first refusal” clause in ensuring that the cost of each current employee is accounted for in the pricing of our response.
Answer #41:
Right of First Refusal is afforded to incumbent employees for vacancies in the successful bidder’s organization.  There is no requirement that these vacancies exist, or that they be offered one-for-one based on the structure of the incumbent organization, or that they be offered at the same salary level as the incumbent organization.  Your bid should be based on your interpretation of the requirements contained in this solicitation.
QUESTION  #42:  Section L.10.2.8 requires a “Project Management Approach” under Tab 4, while Section L.10.2.9 requires a “Project Management Plan” under Tab 5.  What is the difference between these two sections?  Are there specific requirements for the Project Management Plan under Tab 5 (none are listed)?
Answer #42:
See Sections C-4.4.1 and C-4.4.5.3.  Section L.10.2.8 asks for the bidder to describe its overall approach to Project Management, while Section L.10.2.9 is asking for the bidder to provide the detailed plans for how it proposes to accomplish the described approach.

QUESTION #43:  Section L.10.2.8 requires a “Subcontract Management” section under Tab 4, Section L.10.2.9 requires a “Subcontract Management Plan” under Tab 5, and Section L.10.2.13 requires a “Subcontracting Plan” as Tab 9.  What is the difference in the requirements for each of these plans/sections?  Are there specific requirements for the Subcontract Management Plan under Tab 5 (none are listed)?
Answer #43:
See Sections C-4.4.4 and C-4.4.5.4.  Section L.10.2.8 asks for the bidder to describe its overall approach to Subcontract Management.  The language in Section L.10.2.9 will be modified to remove the requirement for a Subcontract Management Plan.  The language in Section L.10.2.13 requiring a Subcontract Management Plan will remain, and asks the bidder to provide the detailed plans for how it proposes to manage subcontracting.
QUESTION #44:  Tab 6, Quality Assurance Surveillance Solution, is included in the 50-page limit.  However, the QASP Summary Matrix may run across many pages if multiple performance standards and thorough explanations are provided for each of the six FS Project Objectives.  Suggest that Tab 6 be removed from the 50-page limit.

Answer #44:
The language in Section L.10.2.5 will be modified to permit a 100 page, double-spaced, limit on responses, and to remove the QASP from the page limit.

QUESTION #45:  Section C-4.2.1 lists 11 positions considered as key personnel.  Can the offeror revise this list to include different or additional key personnel based on its technical/management solution?
Answer #45:
The language in Section C-4.2.1 will modified as follows:

The following are considered key personnel:

Project Manager(s)

Leads for all major areas identified in Sections C-5.1 through 5.10 inclusive.

Offerors may propose additional key personnel, but (a) lead(s) must be provided in each of the indicated areas at a minimum.

QUESTION #46:  Many of the workload tables found in the Performance Work Statement (PWS) include a Frequency of “Daily”, indicating that the listed number of actions within each Period are performed on a daily basis.  However, the corresponding Technical Exhibit lists this same number of actions as performed on an annual basis.  Should the Frequency column in the PWS read “Annually” or “As required” rather than “Daily”?  These include:

C-5.1.2.2 “Maintain asset and configuration management information”

C-5.1.5.1 “Monitor the availability of EUSC services”

C-5.1.5.1 “Respond to customer complaints and inquiries”

C-5.1.5.1 “Provide EUSC with a daily update of user information”

C-5.1.5.5 “Manage Level 2 and 3 queues”

C-5.1.5.5 “Work with EUSC contractor to resolve ticket ownership disputes”

C-5.1.5.5 “Coordinate with vendors to resolve Level 3 tickets”

C-5.1.5.7 “Provide daily operations information, documentation…”

C-5.2.6.2 “Monitor Tivoli Inventory Oracle DB health”

C-5.2.6.2 “Replicate Tivoli Inventory Oracle DB”

C-5.2.6.6 “Monitor reception logs and resolve reception bottlenecks…”

C-5.3.7 “Operate, maintain, and monitor IDS”

C-5.8.2.2 “Backup database (including regular exports)”

Answer #46:
The language in the last sentence of the first paragraph of Section C-6.6 will be modified as follows:

The blocks underneath the period indicate the number of times the output is performed during the specific Period of Performance.  The Frequency Block indicates the frequency with which an output is performed, but is not used as a multiplier for the quantities displayed in the blocks underneath each period.

QUESTION #47 :  Many of the work load tables found in the Performance Work Statement (PWS) include a Frequency of “Monthly”, indicating that the listed number of actions within each Period are performed on a monthly basis.  However, the corresponding Technical Exhibit lists this same number of actions as performed on an annual basis.  Should the Frequency column in the PWS read “Annually” or “As required” rather than “Monthly”?  These include:

C-5.1.1 “Report on supporting IT contracts listed in TE-09”

C-5.1.5.2 “Monitor the EUSC contractor to verify that the KDB documents…”

C-5.1.5.2 “Ensure availability of EUSC KDB through contract with EUSC…”

C-5.1.5.3 “Provide analysis of EUSC operations and service-level compliance”

C-5.1.5.5 “Review closed tickets for accuracy and completeness”

C-5.1.5.7 “Provide website use statistics for the EUSC intranet site and HelpNow”

C-5.1.7 “Track expenditures and correct errors”

C-5.3.6 “Conduct Agency risk and vulnerability assessments”

C-5.3.7 “Aggregate, correlate, and archive all security event data”  NOTE: this work load is not listed in TE-35 at all

C-5.3.8.8 “Maintain firewall devices and packet filters”

C-5.3.8.8 “Monitor exterior access points, router access security, and server…”

C-5.4.6.2 “Review and reconcile non-FTS service billing”

C-5.8.1.2 “Provide DBMS administration and application development guidance”

C-5.8.2.2 “Test/validate backup to insure restoration process is complete”

Answer #47:
See response to Question 46.

QUESTION #48:  Many of the workload tables found in the Performance Work Statement (PWS) include a Frequency of “Quarterly”, indicating that the listed number of actions within each Period are performed on a quarterly basis.  However, the corresponding Technical Exhibit lists this same number of actions as performed on an annual basis.  Should the Frequency column in the PWS read “Annually” or “As required” rather than “Quarterly”?  These include:

C-5.1.5.3 “Provide reports using data extract”

C-5.1.15 “Provide security related reminders”

C-5.1.15 “Provide reports on security awareness”

C-5.2.3 “Make evaluations and recommendations about the Agency IT infrastructure”

C-5.2.6.1 “Develop hardware and software implementation plan for all Tivoli components”
Answer #48:
See response to Question 46.
QUESTION #49:  Two of the workload tables found in the Performance Work Statement (PWS) include a Frequency of “Semi-annually”, indicating that the listed number of actions within each Period are performed on a semi-annual basis.  However, the corresponding Technical Exhibit lists this same number of actions as performed on an annual basis.  Should the Frequency column in the PWS read “Annually” or “As required” rather than “Semi-annually”?  These include:

C-5.1.7 “Adjust budget projections”

C-5.4.5.2 “Provide FIR and CPIC reporting for all requested data”
Answer #49:
See response to Question 46.
QUESTION #50:  Section B.4.1 states that offerors shall use the Cost/Price Models at J.1.  However, the Cost/Price Models appear to be contained within Attachment J-2.  Are the correct models in J-2?
ANSWER #50:  The Cost/Price Schedules are referenced as Attachment J-1, yet the header displays J-2.  The headers will be revised to display J-1.

QUESTION #51:  Section L.10.2.3 refers to Attachment J.1.  Should this be Attachment J-2?
Answer #51:
See response to Question 50.
QUESTION #52:  Are any or all of the supported PCs listed in TE-10_c currently under warranty?

Answer #52:
Yes.
QUESTION #53:  How often are PCs refreshed and how long of a manufacturer warranty for PC hardware does FS generally procure?
Answer #53:
The Forest Service desires to use Best Practices in determining replacement cycles for its hardware.  Desktop and Laptop computers currently have a four-year replacement cycle, and are generally procured with a three-year manufacturer’s warranty with an option to purchase a fourth year, but these lengths are subject to change.
QUESTION #54:  Is any of the work currently performed by the EUSC contractor included in this study?
Answer #54:
No.
QUESTON #55:  Section C-5.1.5 states that “Service Provider responsibilities related to provisions of level 2 and level 3 end user support are described in the related areas of section C-5, and shall be fulfilled in coordination with the EUSC contractor.  The EUSC is comprised of services provided by the Service Provider and EUSC Contractor (IBM Global Services).  As part of EUSC management, the Service Provider shall manage day-to-day operations, …”  Is IBM Global Services responsible for Level 1 support?  Will the Service Provider manage IBM Global Services personnel in their performance since the Service Provider manages all day-to-day operations of the EUSC?  Are Service Provider personnel to be co-located with IBM’s personnel?
Answer #55:
The EUSC Service Provider, currently IBM Global Services, is responsible for most remotely provided Level 1 support.  The Service Provider will not manage EUSC Service Provider personnel, but will be expected to work closely with the EUSC Service Provider.  The third sentence in Section C-5.1.5 will be modified as follows:

As part of its support for EUSC management, the Service Provider shall perform administrative duties related to knowledge database maintenance, ticket resolution, customer service, procedure and policy documentation, performance and operations reporting, communications to customers, and integration of new services.
QUESTION #56:  We assume that Section C-5.2.4, System-level Software Development and Support, applies to small system level scripts and batch files, and does not indicate any requirement for long-term application development support.  Is this correct?
Answer #56:
No.  There is a small amount of long-term development support required for support of certain integration lab activities and Information*Transfer system-level support.
QUESTION #57:  Is the Tivoli Enterprise Management hardware and software completely implemented and operational at all Forest Service locations currently?
Answer #57:
All Tivoli modules licensed by the Forest Service are not yet fully operational at all Forest Service locations.  It is a work in progress, and many issues remain to be resolved.

QUESTION #58:  Doesn’t the customer prefer a CLIN numbering scheme segregated by each year?

Phase In

Base Yr

Option I

Option II

Option III

Option IV

ANSWER #58:  Yes, the CLIN numbers should be segregated by each year.
QUESTION #59:  Should the Incident Response/Labor Hour CLIN number correspond or at least be a sub tier with the related period of performance CLIN?

ANSWER #59:  Yes, the Incident Response/Labor Hour CLIN number should correspond or at least be a sub tier with the related period of performance CLIN.
QUESTION #60:  Is the Incident Response effort a T&M contract-type?
ANSWER #60:  No, the Incident Response effort is a Labor Hour CLIN.
QUESTION #61: Is the Incident Response effort considered over & above the Phase-In, Initial Implementation and Innovation efforts?
Answer #61:
Yes.
QUESTION #62:  Per section M.2.B, “proposed costs must be within the agency budgetary limitation.”  Will this budget (by FY) be disclosed?

ANSWER #62:  No, the budget by Fiscal Year will not be disclosed.
QUESTION #63:  Has the gov’t done an ICE?
ANSWER #63:  Yes, the Government has prepared an ICE.
QUESTION #64:  The RFP continually refers to Attachment J-1 for the Cost/Price schedules yet those templates contain the header J-2.  Is the RFP incorrect or are we missing something?
Answer #64:
See response to Question 50.
QUESTION #65:  Regarding the Pricing templates – are the Phase-In costs and Incident Response costs to be rolled in to the Project Total?
ANSWER #65:  Yes, the Phase-In costs and Incident Response costs are to be rolled in to the Project Total.

QUESTION #66:  I saw in my notes from the Pre-Proposal Conference that you were accepting questions until December 16th, but the web form was closed so I thought that I would use e-mail.  Who is the point of contact for the Government contract support who is helping the Government put together the MEO?  Who is the Government point of contact for the MEO?
ANSWER #66:  The contract support, if any, that is provided to the MEO is source selection sensitive information and will not be released to other offerors.  The Government point of contact for the MEO will not be released to other offerors. 
QUESTION #67:   Section C-2.4 states that "This procurement is intended to accommodate advances in technology that will allow the Agency to continue to improve its mission performance."; Section C-4.3 references "How the Technical Solution's system architecture concept meets the Project's Objectives, uses COTS, is interoperable with FS systems, is compliant with industry standards, is scaleable, and provides the interfaces needed to exchange data with external entities and to communicate within a cooperative environment"; and Section M-3.3.2.2 states that the System Architecture Concept will be evaluated.  The solicitation also states that GFE hardware and software is mandatory.  Is it the intent of the Government to continue having GFE hardware and software mandatory in the innovation phase?
ANSWER #67:  Offerors may propose use of other hardware and software in the Innovation phase.  However, such a proposal should provide returns on investment that are at least equivalent to if not better than the ROI provided by use of the GFE, and that also offset any costs associated with retiring or replacing GFE prior to its normal end of life.

QUESTON #68:  In Section B.4.1, offerors are instructed to provide "an innovative solution to achieve all objectives defined in RFP Sections C-3 and C-4 through the Service Provider's innovative solution for all exercised Option Years."  Does this mean that offerors are required to address the workload in Section C-5.1-C-5.10 for the "Initial Implementation Phase" and they are free to modify that workload, provided they achieve the innovative solution objectives stated in C-3 and C-4? 

ANSWER #68:  The Government will continue to specify the requirements to be performed.  The Service Provider is expected to provide innovative solutions to achieve those requirements during the Innovation Phase.  However, at any point during the performance of this contract, the Service Provider is encouraged and expected to use innovative approaches to efficiently and effectively accomplish SOW or contract tasks, functions, and requirements in a quality manner, at reduced costs, producing savings whenever possible and in a way that fosters pride and ownership in work performed.  The Service Provider may propose to accomplish the Government’s requirements in any way it chooses that conforms to law, regulation, government policy, and approved Enterprise Architecture.  The Service Provider may propose changes to the Agency’s approved Enterprise Architecture to accommodate its solution, but the Agency is not obligated to approve the requested changes.  The Government desires to engage in a cooperative process with the Service Provider to move toward implementation of its proposal for the Innovation Phase.

The Service Provider shall submit a waiver request to the Government for procedures to be used in lieu of functions and tasks required IAW any Forest Service or other governing regulations or directives listed in the statement of work, including the Agency’s approved Enterprise Architecture.  The waiver request will reference the specific governing regulations or directives and section to be waived and provide a detailed justification and explanation of the potential risks and benefits to the Government, if the waiver is approved.  The Government shall evaluate each request and only those approved in writing by the Contracting Officer will be waived.  "Test" or "trial" programs that deviate from governing regulations or directives are not authorized without prior approval.

QUESTION #69:  Section C-4.4.5.6 requires a Quality Control/Customer Satisfaction Plan (QC/CSP) be submitted, Section L.10.2.8 requires a Quality Control Plan (QCP), and Section L.10.2.10 requires a Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan (QASP).  The solicitation describes these as three documents, but there is much overlap among these documents.  Is it acceptable to submit a single, comprehensive document, or may bidders submit a QASP and a separate combined QCP and QC/CSP?  Please clarify.
ANSWER #69:  The QCP referenced in Section L.10.2.8 is the same as the QC/CSP required in Section C-4.4.5.6.  The focus of the QC/CSP is on the Service Provider’s internal processes and procedures by which it will manage quality control and customer satisfaction issues.  The focus of the QASP is on the deliverables and metrics that the government will use to monitor and assess contract performance.  Your proposal must provide a separate QC/CSP (QCP) and QASP.
QUESTION #70:  Section L.10.2.5 (2) states that program management plans and procedures are not to be counted in the page limit of 50 pages for the technical/management volume.  The parenthetical reference, however, only includes Tab 5.  The QASP, in Tab 6, is also a program management plan which contains a large required table that will be many pages long, which makes it very difficult to include in the 50 page limit.  Please remove the QASP from the page limit.
ANSWER #70:  The language in Section L.10.2.5 will be modified to permit a 100 page, double-spaced, limit on responses, and to remove the QASP from the page limit. 
QUESTION #71:  In Section C-5.4.1 the service provider is required to support cooperators infrastructure.  

     a. What are the performance objectives required for this support? 

ANSWER #71:   The performance objectives for this support, and in any other areas that call for support to cooperators, are specified in the related Performance Output Blocks.
QUESTION #72:  Do other Agencies or cooperators have their own requirements for performance that the service provider must meet?  Since this is a critical management issue in terms of interagency relationships and communication, it is important that we understand the service expectations of these cooperators.  Please provide the cooperators performance objectives.
ANSWER #72:
Same as the 
response to question 71 above.
QUESTION #73:  In Section M.2.D, the Agency Tender is not required to submit the listed items.  How will a consistent evaluation be conducted to compare all proposals?
ANSWER #73: Attachment B, Section D.3.a(4) of OMB Circular A-76 directs the Contracting Officer not to require the Agency Tender to provide certain information, also listed in Section M.2.D.  IAW FAR 15.305(a)(2)(iv), if the Agency Tender does not include Past Performance information, it will be evaluated neither favorably nor unfavorably in that area.  If the Agency Tender does not include information in the other areas exempted under Circular A-76, the same approach will be taken:  The Agency Tender will be evaluated neither favorably nor unfavorably.

QUESTION #74:  In section M.3.3.2.1 and M.3.3.2.2, it states the government will evaluate the offeror's Statement of Work (SOW).  In Section L, proposal preparation instructions, there is no directive to provide a statement of work in either Volume I or Volume II.  In addition, the Government has provided a PWS(of about 84 pages).  With Performance based contracts, it has been our experience (and Government guidance - see USDA 7 Steps to PBSC website) that typically either a SOW (and quality assurance plan) is written in response to a Government written SOO -or- a PWS is provided against which the contractor should bid.  Since the government has provided both approaches in this bid, one could interpret the RFP to imply that the government intends a SOW be written in response to the SOO for the innovation phase and the contractor simply implement the PWS (section C-5) with their unique QCP/QASP for the initial implementation phase.  This is, however, unclear given the first three sentences above.

1.  Does the government expect the contractor to 

a. Write a SOW to the SOO only, or

b. Write a SOW in response to the SOO and PWS, or

c. Customize the PWS to our solution, or

d. Use the existing PWS as is and add sections to cover the innovation phase?  Please clarify.
ANSWER #74:  The government expects the Service Provider to implement the Government-provided PWS during the Initial Implementation Phase and to provide a SOW in response to the government’s SOO for the Innovation Phase.

QUESTION #75:  If required, in which volume and tab does the government expect the SOW to be submitted?
ANSWER #75:  Modify L.10.6, Tab 1 and 2.  Technical Solution add the following statement after “The innovative technical solution” “and the Statement of Work for the following four option years of the contact should be discussed in TAB 2.” 
QUESTION #76:  If required, is the SOW to be subject to any page count limits (note that the current PWS is 84 pages)?
ANSWER #76:  The SOW and the SOO/SOW Compliance Matrix combined shall not exceed 150 double-spaced pages.

QUESTION #77:  It appears that the information in the Technical Exhibits is incomplete in some cases; for example, TE-10e does not contain complete information about Puerto Rico, and TE-04 does not list any offices for the Black Hills National Forest.  Will the technical exhibits be updated to include all of the pertinent information needed in order for bidders to accurately configure their technical solution?
ANSWER #77:  As noted in the solicitation (see Section C-4.1.1), bidders are on notice that the data are not represented to be error-free, and that they contain anomalies.  In many cases, the Technical Exhibits contain annotations identifying known deficiencies or anomalies, and advising the offerors to substitute averages for units of similar size and type.  If and when the Contracting Officer is alerted to errors or omissions that, if corrected, would significantly alter the government’s requirement and corrections are feasible, they will be made.  

QUESTION #78:   May we bid offshore labor for positions contained in the PWS? 

ANSWER #78:  The Service Provider is required to comply with FAR 7.305(c) Right of First Refusal of Employment provisions mandated by OMB Circular A-76.  Beyond that requirement, to the extent that proposals bid labor located outside the 50 states and Puerto Rico, it may be considered less desirable on Factor 4 Management than proposals that bid labor located within the 50 states and Puerto Rico.
QUESTION #79:  We would like the government to have sufficient information in the proposals to be able to make an informed decision regarding the contractors proposed approaches.  Given the amount of information requested in Volume II, it will be difficult to get beyond the superficial level in only 50 pages of double spaced type.  We respectfully request that either the double spaced requirement be removed or that the page count be doubled.

ANSWER #79:  The language in Section L.10.2.5 will be modified to permit a 100 page, double-spaced, limit on responses, and to remove the QASP from the page limit.

QUESTION #80:  Section 6.6.1, Performance Standard Block, last sentence in the Description states “Full Performance of the entire workload is always required” and under the Periods 2,3,4 and 5 Block, last sentence in the Description states “…Government FTE workload is 100, the contracted FTE workload is 10, and the total workload is 110 for that performance period.”  Also, Section 6.3.10 states “Contracts identified in TE-09 (Government Furnished Contracts) are mandatory…” Based on these PWS requirements, we have the following question:
Based on our analysis of the content of TE-09 mandatory contracts, and the workload outputs in the PWS, it is clear that contract work depicted to the right of the slash is being provided by mandatory contracts in TE-09.  It is therefore our assumption that workload to the right of the slash in the PWS is not to be included in the service providers cost and staffing proposal.  (Reference EUSC related TE-09 and PWS outputs as an example) 

ANSWER #80:  Your assumption is correct.

QUESTION #81:  Please provide clarification on the apparent contradiction between addressing the “entire workload” and mandatory GFC provided workload.
ANSWER #81:  The language in Section 6.6.1 was inserted in response to comments received from the release of the draft of the PWS, to address concerns expressed that a standard of, for example, “80% completion within 3 days” meant that the Service Provider would only have to perform 80% of the assignment in order to have its performance rated successful, and consequently 20% of the workload in this example would not have to be accomplished.  The referenced statement will be replaced with the following:

Unless released from performance by the Contracting Officer, the Service Provider shall ensure completion of the entire workload assigned to it, either using its own resources or those provided through Government-Furnished Contracts, regardless of whether completion of less than 100% of the requirement within a specified time frame constitutes successful performance.

QUESTION #82:  Section 6.3.10 states, "Contracts identified in TE-09 (Government Furnished Contracts) are mandatory....".   Will these contracts continue to be mandatory 

during the innovation phase?

ANSWER #82: Continued use by a commercial Service Provider of Government-Furnished Contracts (GFC) for professional services will not be mandatory in the Innovation Phase.  The Agency Tender may also change GFC professional services contractors during the Innovation Phase, but must follow A-76 rules if it proposes bringing such work in-house.  Certain GFC used to provide hardware, software, or telecomm circuits, equipment and services are mandated for agency use by higher authority, and the Service Provider shall abide by those mandates, unless the government can obtain a waiver on its behalf.
QUESTION #83:  During the pre-proposal conference, it was stated that the Forest Service is operating under the “new” A-76 rules.  These new rules have eliminated the requirement for a contractor’s price to be at least 10% lower the government’s MEO response in order to be eligible for award.  Yet, the next slide in the presentation stated that a contractor’s price must be at least 10% lower than the government’s MEO price to be eligible for award.  Please clarify this contradiction.
ANSWER #83:  In accordance with the revised A-76 Circular dated May 29, 2003, Attachment B, subparagraph 4(c) Conversion Differential, “All standard competitions shall include the conversion differential of lesser of 10 percent of the MEO’s personnel related costs or $10M over all performance periods stated in the solicitation.

QUESTION #84:  One of the responses to a question stated that a new Statement of Work must be submitted as part of the Offeror’s response, and that the new SOW is page limited to 150 pages.  There is no instruction within Section L that specifies a SOW must be submitted.  Please provide a detailed description of the purpose and contents of this new SOW, and where it should be inserted (which Tab) in the technical response. 

ANSWER #84:  Modify L.10.6, Tab 1 and 2.  Technical Solution add the following statement after “The innovative technical solution” “and the Statement of Work for the following four option years of the contact should be discussed in TAB 2.”  
QUESTION #85:  In response to a question that was read at the bidders conference requesting the number of FTEs per Forest Service location, the answer stated that this information is not required to develop a solution.  It appears that the intent of the question may have been misunderstood.  The question meant to ask how many Forest Service employees and/or contractors reside at each location to be supported by this contract.  This information is required in order to determine if full-time IT support staff is required at a particular office location. For example, if a location only has 5 personnel within the office, then a full-time IT support person is probably not needed at that office.  However, if the location has 100 or more personnel within the office, then one or more full-time IT support people may need to be assigned to that office.  It is impossible to know from the current information how many Forest Service are to be supported at each location, and therefore offerors can only guess at the correct number of IT support personnel needed at each location.
ANSWER #85:
TE-04 provides the number of end-users requiring support at each location.  TE-25 (current Service Level Agreements) sets out most of the government’s response and resolution time requirements (desktop and remote support, network support, server support), which, in conjunction with the information in TE-04 regarding locations and numbers of users, should provide the information necessary to gauge support requirements.
QUESTION #86:  For the voice and video systems, what level of service/maintenance does Forest Service intend to include under this contract?  Do you wish to have all systems included for parts and labor coverage or do you want to contract as needed repairs and maintenance (MACS, adds, new installs, etc) on an as needed basis?
ANSWER #86:  Parts and materials used in repairs or maintenance of PBX systems should not form a part of your bid.  As for labor, where maintenance contracts exist (see TE-09), they may be used by the Service Provider.  Otherwise, the workload as described in TEs 33 and 50 determine where and what must be done.  
QUESTION #87:  In the technical exhibit that list all of the PBX equipment throughout Forest System, many comments indicate that the systems are co-owned with another agency, are maintained by another agency, or are under limited control of the Forest Service itself.  Please clarify on a site-by-site basis what the level of control Forest Service has for these systems as well as what level of service Forest Service is requiring under this contract.
ANSWER #87:
The tasks related to PBX support described in Section C-5.4.6 provide information regarding aggregate annual numbers and frequency of occurrences, and performance expectations.  Those performance expectations apply at all sites performing the associated work.  Response requirements are contained in TE-21.  In addition, TEs 33 (Ad-Hoc contractor workload) and 50 (Routine Operations) contain information regarding the number of annual occurrences of the related actions by site.  If sites report no activity in specific task areas, bidders may presume that the activity is not currently performed at that location, always bearing in mind that the data may contain errors or omissions, and changing circumstances may revise the Agency’s requirements of when, where, or whether an activity is to be performed.

QUESTION #88:  The solicitation does not specify what service level agreement is required in support of the voice and video systems and network to a sufficient degree.  Please clarify in sum or site-by-site basis what the required response time is for repair maintenance, standard maintenance, or Move-Add-Change work. 
Answer #88:  TE-21 conveys the response time requirements for scheduled, non-critical, critical, or emergency services in this area.  The response times do not vary from site to site.  TEs 33 and 50 contain information regarding the numbers of occurrences, by site, in the relevant categories requiring scheduled, non-critical, critical, or emergency response, as outlined in TE-21.

QUESTION #89:  Does the Forest Service intend for the contractor to coordinate network provisioning with GSA FTS or commercial carrier for any and all line/trunk requirements that Forest Service has. 

ANSWER #89:  Yes.  The Service Provider shall work through the Designated Agency Representatives (DARs) for FTS and LEC orders, problems, issues, or complaints.  Cost Comparisons and USDA requirements must also be considered.

QUESTION #90:  Since the age and condition of the voice systems throughout Forest Service is an unknown, does The Forest Service expect a firm fixed price to maintain the systems including both labor and equipment costs?  Or will the Forest Service accept hourly labor rates (CLINs) for service and repair and pay for equipment and labor as needed? 

ANSWER #90: 
See the response to Question 4.

QUESTION #91:  Are there any mail architecture diagrams available showing any or all of the following:  Site interconnects, to include bandwidth, redundancy, Internet access points, etc. Mail routing topology Mail replication topology i.e. hub and spoke, end to end, ring, etc. Mail storage architecture i.e. native or SAN-based, mail store sizes per site.

Mail server redundancy. Mail user breakdown on a per site basis.

Mail domain topology
ANSWER #91: a.  Diagrams are not available.  However, each Domino server in a cluster is connected to the Forest Service Intranet over a minimum of a 100 Mbps LAN link.  Each Domino cluster has either two or four servers within it.  In a two-server configuration, they are set up to fail over to the alternate.  In a four-server configuration, they are configured as a pair of clusters; within each cluster each server fails over to the other server, but the cluster pairs are independent and do not fail over to each other .  See the network diagrams included in the Technical Exhibits and the Technical Library.

b.
Diagrams not available, but all mail clusters are part of one single Forest Service domain, so mail delivery is instantaneous between all servers.

c.
Diagrams not available, but replication occurs instantaneously among clusters.

d.
Mail storage architecture is shared SCSI RAID or SSA towers at each cluster.

e.
See response to Question 9.a.

f.
The question is unclear as to what information is being sought.  The information in TE-04 showing the number of personnel at each location can be used to provide an approximation of the geographic distribution of email users.  Each of the mail clusters covers a Region, or the Washington Office.  With a few exceptions, the Regional clusters serve all units with the geographic area of that Region, including Research Stations and WO detached units.  However, in the Eastern Region (R9), North Central Research Station, Forest Products Laboratory, and Northeastern Research Station/Northeastern Area State & Private Forestry all are served by the WO mail cluster rather than R9’s cluster.  Each of the Domino clusters supports the following number of accounts (as of 12/17/2003):

WO

2,805

R1

4,099

R2

4,821

R3

3,370

R4

4,235

R5
1st
4,136

R5
2nd
3,836

R6
1st
3,883

R6
2nd
4,074

R8

5,160

R9

3,181

R10

1,262

g.
Diagrams are not available; the Forest Service operates a single mail domain.
QUESTION #92:  What is the current mail administration model (i.e. centralized, decentralized, or hybrid)? 

Answer #92:  Centralized.

QUESTION #93:  Please confirm the Domino OS at each site (e.g., AIX, Windows 2000, etc.). 
Answer #93:  All Domino servers currently run AIX version 4.3, although some nodes may be migrated to AIX version 5.1 during calendar year 2004.
QUESTION #94:  Please indicate where Sametime and Quickplace are running concurrently on a Domino cluster. 
Answer #94:
Sametime and Quickplace do not run on any of our Domino clusters.  These products run on other servers.
QUESTION #95:  Is the current mail backup architecture part of the enterprise backup architecture or separate? 
Answer #95:
There is no separate email backup architecture.  Backup of the mail servers occurs as part of the normal nightly backup of each server, using AIX tape backup utilities.
QUESTION #96:  Please describe the clustering at each site, if applicable?  How many nodes in each cluster? 
Answer #96:  There is no clustering in the general server pool.  Domino clustering is used for the Domino mail servers, and for Domino data servers in R1 and R6.  Almost all sites have two nodes in the mail cluster, with the exception of R5, and R6, which each have four nodes in their mail clusters.
QUESTION #97:  What clustering technology is currently being used for Domino i.e. Domino clustering, OS based, hardware based, hybrid? 
Answer #97:
Domino software, using shared disks.
QUESTION #98:  Is clustering active or passive? 
Answer #98:
Active; it is an explicit process established to synchronize data between all systems in a cluster.
QUESTION #99:  What is the current mail support requirement (e.g., M-F 8am – 5pm EST, M-F 8am – 8pm EST, 24x7, etc.)? 
Answer #99:
24x7 except for necessary or unavoidable maintenance, usually scheduled on the weekends unless an emergency arises.
QUESTION #100:   What, if any, are the user remote mail access options (e.g. Web-based, VPN-based)? 
Answer #100:
Web-based (browser access) from within the Forest Service Intranet, dial-up (Notes Client access) into the Forest Service Intranet, VPN-based (Notes Client access) from the public Internet.  VPN users could also use the web-based interface from the public Internet when using someone else’s computer, but use the Notes client when connected via the computer provided and configured for them.

QUESTION #101:  Please describe the current mail anti virus architecture. 
Answer #101:
Norton Anti-Virus Corporate Edition v7.5, on the desktop (no AV software on the servers).
QUESTION #102:  Please describe, if any, the current anti spam architecture. 

Answer #102:
Limited.  The Forest Service Intranet connects to the public Internet via USDA facilities.  Although there are firewalls on the Forest Service side of those connections, most spam filtering currently occurs at the USDA level.  The Forest Service firewalls contain some customization that performs a small amount of SPAM filtering.  All SPAM filtering is done through SMTP, not through Domino.
QUESTION #103:  Are there currently any wireless solutions in place, e.g. Blackberry. 
Answer #103:
No wireless electronic messaging solutions are currently in place in the Forest Service, although we are investigating the incorporation of such technology into our email architecture, and desire to do so.  Individual units may have or utilize text messaging in conjunction with cell phone or pager service, but these facilities are not currently integrated into the Forest Service email system.  There may be isolated instances where an individual manually resends email to a wireless PDA or Blackberry, but no Enterprise solution to integrate such devices into our electronic messaging facilities exists yet.

QUESTION #104:  Who is responsible for mail server management tasks not relating to Domino i.e. OS and/or hardware updates. 

ANSWER #104:  In many locations, the Domino system administrators are responsible for all system administration tasks on the Domino servers, including OS and/or hardware updates.  In other locations the system administration duties are divided among the workforce such that certain individuals are responsible for all AIX and/or hardware administration, others exclusively handle Domino system administration, and yet others handle Tivoli exclusively.  In some locations the system administrator(s) primarily responsible for Domino and/or Tivoli may also be responsible for the AIX system administration of other (file, database, application, cell master) servers.

QUESTION #105:  Is there currently a documented and tested disaster recovery plan for the mail infrastructure? 

Answer #105:
No, but such a plan is under development.

QUESTION #106:  As a point of clarification, this requirement is managing desktop (client) software component for messaging, instant messaging, and groupware? 

Answer #106:
Yes, and for the server component as well.

QUESTION #107:  What tools is the Forestry Service currently using to push software to the desktop?  Tivoli? 

Answer #107:
The USDA Forest Service uses Tivoli to push software to the desktop.  Depending on the nature of the package to be distributed, it may also be delivered by login scripts, which are pushed to the login servers by Tivoli and executed as users login to the network.  In certain cases we can also use the Domino infrastructure to distribute Domino-based applications.

QUESTION #108:  What is the current storage architecture by site?  Is it:  a) local storage, b) NAS, c) SAN, or a combination? 
Answer #108:
At each of the 10 Domino cluster sites, the clusters use local SCSI RAID arrays or SSAs shared among the Domino servers in the cluster.  For the storage used by other servers, most sites currently use local storage, although a few have implemented limited amounts of NAS.  The Forest Service is developing an NAS solution to be incorporated into its Enterprise Architecture that is intended to be implemented at most locations for data storage.
QUESTION #109:  What are current user mail policies including quotas? 

ANSWER #109:   Users currently have a soft quota of 50 Mbytes for mail storage on the Domino servers.  There is also a hard quota of 100 Mbytes, which, when reached, results in the rejection of additional incoming email.

QUESTION #110:  For each messaging storage solution, what tools are used to monitor 

the storage?  Tivoli? 

ANSWER #110:  Domino and native AIX system administration tools are used to monitor server mail storage.

QUESTION #111:  Is there a document that describes the storage details for each or any of the sites (e.g., partitions, mail quotas, # users per partition, etc.)? 

ANSWER #111:   Each site maintains such information in site-specific format.  There are agency-wide Daily Operations Guides for Notes/Domino and for AIX servers describing how Domino and AIX should be configured.  These DOGs are available as part of the Technical Library.

QUESTION #112:  What software, hardware, and storage tools are used for backup and restoration at each site? 
ANSWER #112: Currently most sites continue to use the tape backup/restore utilities that are included with the AIX operating system.  Some units have been testing, and have now migrated to, the Tivoli Storage Manager (TSM) product, which is hosted (at each site using it) on a standalone server with associated tape library.  The agency currently plans to migrate all server backup and restoration activities at the WO, RO, and Station sites to TSM over the next year.  Storage at sites further downstream, at Supervisor’s Offices (SOs), district offices, and laboratories, will be configured to utilize TSM over the next four years, but those sites may not actually host a TSM server and tape library.  As far as hardware is concerned, sites currently use a mix of single- or dual-drive tape drives, and/or small tape libraries (generally fewer than 100 active tapes mounted in the tape library).

